RECEIVED

STATE OF WISCONSIN COURT OF A PFE 40 s 2018

DISTRICT III.

CLERK OF COURT OF APPEALS OF WISCONSIN

APPEAL NUMBER 2018AP718

STATE OF WISCONSIN,

Plaintiff-Respondent,

v.

ADAM ANDERSON

Defendant-Appellant.

ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR PIERCE COUNTY THE HONORABLE JOSEPH D. BOLES PRESIDING

BRIEF AND APPENDIX OF DEFENDANT-APPELLANT

Respectfully Submitted, ADAM ANDERSON Defendant-Appellant

Law Office of Clayton Griessmeyer Attorney for Defendant-Appellant P.O. Box 930473 Verona, Wisconsin 53593 (608) 320-6710

BY: CLAYTON C. GRIESSMEYER State Bar Number 1071945

ISSUES PRESENTED

Whether constant surreptitious video recording of the activities at a home violate the Fourth Amendment right of an overnight guest with an arrest warrant to be free from unreasonable searches?

Trial court found no violation.

STATEMENT ON ORAL ARGUMENT AND PUBLICATION

Neither are requested.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

At an unknown date and time prior to July 27, 2015, a Pierce County Sheriff placed a video surveillance camera on a telephone pole "right where the lines meet," about three, four feet down from the top of the pole. R: 48: 9.

Law enforcement guessed that there was unlawful drug activity happening at the house in question and therefore started continuously recording the house without ever seeking judicial oversight.

Law enforcement's guess was wrong/they never found evidence of unlawful drug activity. Instead, one day when Deputy Marty Shepler was reviewing recorded video on his computer from the pole cam, he noticed Mr. Anderson on the video. He sent three other deputies to go to the property to arrest Mr. Anderson for a warrant. *Id.* at page 5.

When the police arrived, Mr. Anderson ran into a garage and shut the door and then ran through a soybean filed where he eventually tripped, fell, and surrendered to law enforcement. *Id.* at page 5.

Mr. Anderson was charged with one count of resisting or obstructing an officer contrary to Wis. Stat. 946.41(1). R: 1:1-2. He was convicted after a jury trial where the jury watched video of him obtained from the police pole cam. At trial it was alleged the officers

were acting with *lawful authority* when they placed the video camera on private property and used it to record the curtilage of a house 24 hours per day and later view the recordings on a computer and used the video during the arrest and jury trial of Mr. Anderson. R: 54:1-220.

30 人名英格兰

Pre-trial, the defendant moved to suppress video obtained by the sheriffs. Deputy Marty Shepler from Pierce County Sheriff Office testified about placement of the camera and how he watched the camera from his computer. R: 48: 1-23.

According to Shepler, the video camera was able to view, "Soybean fields, cornfields, Brittney Witzke's residence, the intersection of County Road EE and County Road D, and trees." "Depending on the distance, you know, what I'm viewing, I can focus on things a couple miles away, if necessary." Id. at page 6.

Regarding the privacy of the house and yard, Shepler testified, "Yes, lots of trees, and I believe there might have been a fence on one side of the house." When asked about a fence and view/seeing thru the fence, Shepler testified, "I believe one side of county road the fence is restrictive, but the rest is open I believe." Id.

Mr. Anderson testified he stayed at the house for about a week and there is a fence that is about six feet tall, see through wire, and it "goes all the way around the yard." Id. at Page 19.

The circuit court denied the defense motion to suppress the video pretrial. Id. at page 23.

On March 29, 2018, the circuit court denied the defense postconviction motion to suppress the warrantless video. The court held that the camera was on Pierce Pepin property and not the property Mr. Anderson was arrested on, and that Mr. Anderson had a warrant for his arrest when the police saw him on the warrantless video camera. R: 38: 1-2.

ARGUMENT

The 4th Amendment Prohibits Warrantless, Continuous, and Covert Recording in and Around the Yards of Rural Homes in Isolated Settings.

Both the fourth amendment to the United States

Constitution and Art. I, Sec. 11 of the Wisconsin

Constitution guarantee citizens the right to be free

from unreasonable searches and seizures. This court

consistently follows the United States Supreme Court's

interpretation of the search and seizure provision of the fourth amendment in construing the same provision of the state constitution. *State* v. *Kramer*, 2009 WI 14, 315 Wis.2d 414, 759 N.W.2d 598.

Warrantless searches are per se unreasonable. *State* v. *Milashoski*, 159 Wis.2d 99, 110-11, 464 N.W.2d 21, 25-26 (Ct. App. 1990), aff'd, 163 Wis.2d 72, 471 N.W.2d 42 (1991). The State has the burden of proving that a challenged warrantless search falls within one of the exceptions to this general rule. *State* v. *Pozo*, 198 Wis.2d 706, 711 n.2, 544 N.W.2d 228, 230 (Ct. App. 1995).

In this case, law enforcement never even requested a warrant from a neutral and detached judge. Their guess of drug activity was wrong.

A. Mr. Anderson Has Standing to Challenge the Unlawful Search

Status as an overnight guest is alone sufficient to show an expectation of privacy in the home that society is prepared to recognize as reasonable. *Minnesota* v. *Olson*, 495 U.S. 91 (1990), *Rakas* v. *Illinois*, 439 U.S. 128, Jones v. United States 362 U.S. 257.

Mr. Anderson testified he stayed at the house for about a week. R: 48:19.

B. Mr. Anderson was Observed and Arrested in the Curtilage of the Home

The Fourth Amendment prohibits entry onto curtilage for the purpose of making a warrantless arrest: *United States* v. *Struckman*, 603 F.3d 731, 739 (9th Cir. 2010); holding police officers' warrantless seizure of defendant within his backyard and their entry into the yard to perfect his arrest, violated the Fourth Amendment.

Fourth Amendment protections extend to a home's curtilage. *State* v. *O'Brien*, 223 Wis. 2d 303, 316, 588 N.W.2d 8 (1999). A truck parked approximately 200 feet from a farmhouse is within the curtilage when the farm consisted of a barn, outbuilding, small backyard and two driveways. In the context of a rural setting, the area extending to the outbuilding is in the curtilage. Id. at 316.

The State conceded curtilage by filing a copy of *Terry Thomas* v. *United States of America* on 9-21-17. R: 37:

1-8. That case holds that Fourth Amendment protections extended to the backyard are part of the curtilage of the house," citing *Oliver* v. *United States* 466 U.S. 170."

See also *State* v. *Walker* 154 Wis. 2d 158 overruled on other grounds. "The record thus shows that, at the time of Walker's warrantless nighttime arrest, Walker was in the fenced-in backyard of is home." This was an unlawful arrest.

In this case, defendant testified he stayed overnight at the house for a about a week prior to July 27, 2015, R 48: 16. He was observed in a fenced yard near the house. When police came to arrest him, he went inside a garage and closed the door shortly after they arrived demonstrating his right to privacy. R: 53: 99. Defendant has standing to challenge the warrantless search.

C. An Arrest Warrant Does Not Validate the Unlawful Warrantless Search

"A search is not made legal by what it turns up; in law, it is good or bad when it starts, and does not change

character from its success." *United States* v. *Di re*, 332 U.S. 581, 595 (1947).

..... "if only an *arrest* warrant were required in this type of situation, police would be free to search the homes of all the suspect's friends and acquaintances." *Steagald* v. *United States* 451 .S. 204 (1981).

The government cannot violate the 4th amendment rights of people and then argue after the fact there is no violation because they happen to find out a person had an arrest warrant.

For example, if the government places a hidden surveillance camera in a person's bedroom, or in the locker-room of a YMCA (without any judicial oversight), and later notices a person with a warrant, that search is still illegal. Without the unlawful search, the government would not have had probable cause to believe the person was at the YMCA or in the bedroom.

Similarly, here, the 24-hour warrantless video surveillance from private property with ability to view several miles was an unlawful search from the beginning. The fact the sheriffs later noticed someone

with a warrant does not change the search from unlawful to lawful.

D. The Government Cannot Use an Illegal Search to Create Probable Cause.

When police conduct a search without probable cause, the search is unlawful, and the results should be suppressed. *State* v. *Blackman*, 2017 WI 77 Court.

In *Steagald* v. *United States* 451 .S. 204 (1981), the U.S. Supreme Court differentiated between an arrest warrant and a search warrant when the person arrested was found on the property of a third person.

"Having already held that prior to his entry Thomas did not have probable cause to believe Wanie was a resident of Kiper's apartment¹, we now conclude that Thomas needed a search warrant to enter the apartment to look for and execute the arrest warrant for Wanie. Thomas could not use the arrest warrant as legal authority to enter Kiper's home based on the simple belief that Wanie might be there, because that belief was

11

¹ In this case the sheriff had probable cause to belief Mr. Anderson was on the property, but the probable cause came from an illegal search.

never subjected to the neutral and detached scrutiny of a judicial officer."

Steagald v. United States 451 .S. 204 (1981), Cited by State v. Kiper, 193 Wis. 2d 69.

"An arrest warrant indicates only that there is probable cause to believe the suspect committed a crime, it affords no basis to believe that the suspect is in a stranger's house. *Wallace* v. *King*, 626 F.2d 1157 (4th Cir., 1980).

Here, before they viewed Mr. Anderson on the video search, the police did not have probable cause to believe Mr. Anderson was at the property. The probable cause came from the unlawful search.

Without the video search, the sheriffs would never have known Mr. Anderson was at the house in question. The search was bad when it started and did not become lawful after the police noticed Mr. Anderson.

CONCLUSION

The underlying purpose of the Fourth Amendment is to protect against police having the unfettered discretion to choose which homes to search. *Brown* v. *Texas*, 443 U.S. 47, 61 L. Ed. 2d 357, 99 S. Ct. [**685] 2637 (1979).

In this case, based upon a false hunch of drug activity, the sheriffs continuously video recorded a house of their own choosing without any judicial oversight.

The police were not acting with lawful authority when they came to arrest Mr. Anderson based on the illegal search. The video surveillance should be suppressed, and the case should be dismissed.