RECEIVED

09-21-2018

STATE OF WISCONSIN COURT OF APPEALS DISTRICT III

CLERK OF COURT OF APPEALS OF WISCONSIN

Case No. 2018AP000718-CR

STATE OF WISCONSIN,

Plaintiff-Respondent,

v.

ADAM BLAINE ANDERSON,

Defendant-Appellant.

ON APPEAL FROM AN ORDER DENYING ANDERSON'S MOTION AND POSTCONVICTION MOTION, PIERCE COUNTY CIRCUIT COURT, THE HONORABLE JOSEPH D. BOLES, PRESIDING

PLAINTIFF-RESPONDENT'S BRIEF

SEAN E. FROELICH District Attorney State Bar No. 1084551

Pierce County Courthouse 414 W. Main Street P.O. Box 808 Ellsworth, WI Pierce County (715) 273-6750

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE
STATEMENT ON ORAL ARGUMENT AND PUBLICATION
STATEMENT OF THE CASE2
ARGUMENT2
ADAM ANDERSON DID NOT HAVE A REASONABLE EXPECTATION OF PRIVACY WHILE STANDING IN A YARD THAT WAS VISIBLE TO THE CAMERA
A. ANDERSON WAS NOT IN THE CURTILAGE WHEN HE WAS OBSERVED ON THE CAMERA2
B. ANDERSON DID NOT HAVE A REASONABLE EXPECTATION OF PRIVACY WHEN HE WAS STANDING IN THE YARD OF THE RESIDENCE AND OBSERVED ON CAMERA BY LAW ENFORCEMENT4
CONCLUSION
CERTIFICATION AS TO FORM AND LENGTH 8
CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH RULE 809.12(13)9
CERTIFICATE OF MAILING10

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

Page CASES:
Smith v. Maryland, 442 U.S. 735, 99 S.Ct. 2577, 61 L.Ed.2d 220 (1979)
<u>State v. Dumstrey</u> , 2016 WI 3, 366 Wis. 2d 64, 873 N.W.2d 502, <u>cert. denied</u> , 137 S. Ct. 43, 196 L. Ed. 2d 28 (2016)
<u>State v. Eskridge,</u> 2002 WI App 158, 256 Wis.2d 314, 647 N.W.2d 4345
<u>State v. Rewolinski,</u> 159 Wis.2d 1, 464 N.W.2d 401 (1990)
<u>United States v. Dunn,</u> 480 U.S. 294, 107 S.Ct. 1134 (1987)
STATUTES:
Wis. Stat. § (Rule) 809.19

STATE OF WISCONSIN COURT OF APPEALS DISTRICT III

Case No. 2018AP000718-CR

STATE OF WISCONSIN,

Plaintiff-Respondent,

v.

ADAM BLAINE ANDERSON,

Defendant-Appellant.

ON APPEAL FROM AN ORDER DENYING ANDERSON'S MOTION AND POSTCONVICTION MOTION, PIERCE COUNTY CIRCUIT COURT, THE HONORABLE JOSEPH D. BOLES, PRESIDING

PLAINTIFF-RESPONDENT'S BRIEF

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE

Did the circuit court properly deny Adam Anderson's motion to suppress video evidence where the video constituted ongoing surveillance of a yard in which Anderson was observed and subsequently arrested?

The circuit court answered "yes" in denying Mr. Anderson's motion.

STATEMENT ON ORAL ARGUMENT AND PUBLICATION

The parties' briefs will adequately address the issue presented, and oral argument will not significantly assist the court in deciding this appeal.

The State does not take a position on publication of this Court's decision and opinion.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

As plaintiff-respondent, the State exercises its discretion to not present a statement of the case. *See* Wis. Stat. § (Rule) 809.19(3)(a)2. The State cites to relevant facts in the Argument section below.

ARGUMENT

ADAM ANDERSON DID NOT HAVE A REASONABLE EXPECTATION OF PRIVACY WHILE STANDING IN A YARD THAT WAS VISIBLE TO THE CAMERA.

Anderson argues that he was on the curtilage of the property, he has standing, and that officers should have obtained a warrant to place a camera and review video footage which ultimately led to his arrest. However, the circuit court properly denied Anderson's motion to suppress the video evidence. The arguments presented by Anderson are addressed below.

A. ANDERSON WAS NOT IN THE CURTILAGE WHEN HE WAS OBSERVED ON THE CAMERA.

Anderson alleges that he was on the curtilage of the property in question when he was observed on camera by law enforcement. However, Anderson was not in the curtilage.

The United States Supreme Court has cited the following four factors which are to be taken into

consideration when determining whether an area is considered curtilage:

proximity of the area claimed to be curtilage to the home, whether the area is included within an enclosure surrounding the home, the nature of the uses to which the area is put, and the steps taken by the resident to protect the area from observation by people passing by.

<u>United States v. Dunn</u>, 480 U.S. 294, 301, 107 S.Ct. 1134, 1139 (1987). This four-step analysis has been adopted by the Wisconsin Supreme Court. <u>State v. Dumstrey</u>, 2016 WI 3, ¶ 32, 366 Wis. 2d 64, 86, 873 N.W.2d 502, 512, <u>cert. denied</u>, 137 S. Ct. 43, 196 L. Ed. 2d 28 (2016). In <u>Dumstrey</u>, the Wisconsin Supreme Court noted that the four factors, "are useful analytical tools only to the degree that, in any given case, they bear upon the centrally relevant consideration—whether the area in question is so intimately tied to the home itself that it should be placed under the home's 'umbrella' of Fourth Amendment protection." <u>Dumstrey</u>, 366 Wis. 2d 64, ¶ 32; <u>citing Dunn</u>, 480 U.S. at 301, 107 S.Ct. 1134.

In the present case, the address of the residence W5309 County Road EE, Pierce County, Wisconsin. (R. 47:4.) Investigator Marty Shepler testified at the suppression motion hearing that the area in which Anderson was located had a fence on one side, as well as trees. (R. 47:6.) He further clarified this statement by testifying, "I believe one side of County Road D the fence is restrictive, but the rest is open, I believe." (Id.) Investigator Shepler testified that County Road EE is an east-west road that runs north of the property, while County Road D is a north-south road that runs on the east side of the property. (R. 47:7.)

In response to Anderson's counsel's inquiry regarding whether a warrant authorized the placement of the camera to "look into the backyard of [the homeowner's] home," Investigator Shepler responded with characterizing the area as "open fields." (R. 47:14.) Anderson testified that the yard was fully fenced. (R. 47:18-19.) He also testified that it is "about six feet tall, it's see-through wire, not barbed wire." (R. 47:18.)¹

The testimony regarding the surroundings of the area Anderson was observed within distinguish the yard in this case from a fully fenced-in backyard that would make the yard itself unable to be viewed from beyond the fence. The address of the residence as well as Investigator Shepler's description of the other surrounding county roads show that the property is located at the corner of two county roads: County Road EE and County Road D. Per Anderson's own testimony, the fence was "see-through wire," thus making the yard viewable from beyond the fence, presumably from both county roads. Regardless of the amount of fencing, the area was visible from outside. Under the <u>Dunn</u> factors, the area is not curtilage.

B. ANDERSON DID NOT HAVE A REASONABLE EXPECTATION OF PRIVACY WHEN HE WAS STANDING IN THE YARD OF THE RESIDENCE AND OBSERVED ON CAMERA BY LAW ENFORCEMENT.

Anderson argues that law enforcement should have obtained a warrant to place the camera on the pole across the street from the yard. However, law enforcement did not need to obtain a warrant and Anderson did not have a reasonable expectation of privacy where he was standing. The State does not concede that law enforcement's actions in placing the camera constitute a search under the Fourth Amendment.

_

¹ The State concedes that Anderson's description of the fence is accurate.

Wisconsin courts apply a two question standard in determining whether an individual has a reasonable expectation of privacy: "(1) whether the person exhibits an actual, subjective expectation of privacy in the area; and (2) whether society is willing to recognize such an expectation as reasonable." <u>Dumstrey</u>, 366 Wis. 2d 64, ¶ 47; <u>citing Smith v. Maryland</u>, 442 U.S. 735, 740, 99 S.Ct. 2577, 61 L.Ed.2d 220 (1979); <u>State v. Rewolinski</u>, 159 Wis.2d 1, 13, 464 N.W.2d 401 (1990); <u>State v. Eskridge</u>, 2002 WI App 158, ¶ 11, 256 Wis.2d 314, 647 N.W.2d 434. In <u>Rewolinski</u>, the Wisconsin Supreme Court set forth six factors that are relevant in making this determination:

(1) whether the defendant had a property interest in the premises; (2) whether he was legitimately (lawfully) on the premises; (3) whether he had complete dominion and control and the right to exclude others; (4) whether he took precautions customarily taken by those seeking privacy; (5) whether he put the property to some private use; and (6) whether the claim of privacy is consistent with historical notions of privacy.

Rewolinski, 159 Wis. 2d at 17-18.

First, Anderson did not have a property interest in the property, and he did not have control or the right to exclude others. (See R. 47:16-17.) He may have legitimately been on the property, but that does not grant him "complete dominion and control."

Regarding whether Anderson took "precautions customarily taken by those seeking privacy," the State would note that Anderson was outside. Anderson was observed "fixing a swimming pool that was in the yard." (R. 47:4.) Investigator Shepler was able to observe Anderson in the yard through a surveillance device that allowed Investigator Shepler to monitor the outdoor areas. (R. 47:5.) In response to questions, Investigator Shepler testified that the type of camera used is something that can be purchased by essentially anyone. (R. 47:10, 13.)

These facts are also applicable to the factor regarding putting property to private use. By standing in a yard that can be observed by the public or from a device that can be purchased by the general public, Anderson was not putting the property to private use. He was not inside of the house or even the garage when he was first observed; he was standing in the yard.

The totality of the circumstances show that Anderson did not have a reasonable expectation of privacy. <u>See Rewolinski</u>, 159 Wis. 2d at 17. Law enforcement placed a camera that could be purchased by the public, on land that did not belong to Anderson, and they were able to observe an open, outdoor area of a property not belonging to Anderson. (R. 47:4-5, 10, 13.) Investigator Shepler was aware that he had a warrant, and because of this, other officers attempted to apprehend Anderson. (R. 47:4-5.) Anderson ultimately ran through an open soybean field in an attempt to elude officers. (R. 47:5.)

Anderson did not have a reasonable expectation of privacy. As the circuit court noted, the video observations were those that could be made by the public. The video did not peer into the home. The video showed the yard which is where Anderson was standing. As such, the circuit court properly denied his motion.

CONCLUSION

For the reasons stated above, the State respectfully requests that this Court affirm the decision of the circuit court.